Dear [LINEAL DESCENDANT/TRIBE]:

As part of my law enforcement responsibilities, I have investigated your allegation(s) concerning [MUSEUM]’s failure to comply with the Native American Graves Protection and Repatriation Act (NAGPRA) by [VIOLATION CATEGORY].  That investigation has concluded and will be forwarded to the Assistant Secretary of the Interior for Fish and Wildlife and Parks for findings and a determination.  A letter issued by the Assistant Secretary will inform the museum that a particular allegation has or has not been substantiated, and you will receive a copy of that letter.

Without prejudicing the decision of the Assistant Secretary, in the event that the Assistant Secretary assesses a civil penalty against [MUSEUM], I am writing to you as a potentially aggrieved party whose damages may be considered by the Assistant Secretary in the penalty phase of the civil process.  Under 43 C.F.R. 10.12 (g)(2)(ii), a penalty may take into account “the damages suffered, both economic and non-economic, by the aggrieved party or parties including, but not limited to, expenditures by the aggrieved party to compel the museum to comply with the Act.”  Thus, for example, expenditures that the aggrieved party would not have incurred but for the failure of the museum to comply with the requirements of NAGPRA would be included expenditures, but services offered on a voluntary basis (pro bono) would not be included expenditures.

As you are a potentially aggrieved party, for each failure to comply that you have alleged, I would appreciate receiving from you a corresponding, itemized list of your damages.  Accompanying each amount, you will need to provide supporting documentation to show that the amount in question was caused by the museum’s failure to comply with the requirements of NAGPRA as set forth in the allegation.  In the event that the Assistant Secretary assesses the museum a civil penalty, these damages will be considered by the Assistant Secretary in determining the penalty amount.

Damages collected through payment of the penalty must be deposited into the general fund of the U.S. Treasury and, therefore, will not be forwarded to an aggrieved party.  At the same time, an agreement by the museum to mitigate the violation by payment of restitution to the aggrieved party may reduce the penalty amount (see 43 C.F.R. 10.12 (g)(4)(ii)).

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions.  I look forward to receiving your response.
Kind regards,
Bob Palmer

